CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension continuation renewal amendment
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of
a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form -
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31,
U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official Title

Applicant Organization Date Submitted

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion

(1) The participant certifies by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its
principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible
or voluntarily

excluded from patrticipation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

(2) Where the participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official Title

Applicant Organization Date Submitted



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS

Contracts funded in whole or in part with CDBG funds shall
contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate
and these provisions shall take precedence over the City Terms

and Conditions if a conflict exists.

CONTRACTS
1.Access and Maintenance of Records

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and
all other pending matters are closed.

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the
contractor shall make available to the City of Harrisonburg, the General Accounting Office, and
the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination, all of its records
pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to audit, examine,
make excerpts or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolls, personnel records,
conditions of employment, and all other matters covered by this contract.

2. Civil Rights

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations:
e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352).

e Section 104(b) and Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development
Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5309).
e The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.)

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794).

e Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213)

e Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u).

e Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended.

o Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 122509.



e Federal Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended

3. Termination Clause

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain a termination clause that specifies the
following:
e Under what conditions the clause may be imposed.
e The form the termination notice must take (e.g., certified letter).
e The time frame required between the notice of termination and its effective date.
e The method used to compute the final payment(s) to the contractor.

4. Certification regarding government-wide restriction on lobbying.

All contract utilizing CDBG funds must contain the following certification concerning
restriction of lobbying and a certification must be completed (attached):

"The Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

i No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

ii.  Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal
Lobbying" in accordance with its instruction.

iii.  The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify
and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure."

5. Certification regarding Debarment and Suspension (E.O.s 12549 and 12689)

Contractors with awards that exceed the small purchase threshold shall provide the
required certification (attached) regarding its exclusion status and that of its principal
employees.



No contract shall be made to parties listed on the General Services Administration's List
of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs in
accordance with E.O.s 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension."” This list contains
the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, and
contractors declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than E.O.

12549.

6. Equal Employment

In addition to the preceding provisions, all contracts in excess of $10,000 must include the
following language, pursuant to Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375:

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

)

)

()

(4)

()

(6)

The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated
during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading,
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprentice-
ship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth
the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be
provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers'
representative of the contractor's commitments under Section 202 of the Executive Order
No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of
Labor.

The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No.
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by
the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clause of this
contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled,
terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible
for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive
Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or
by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
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(7)  The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or
vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase
order as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions
including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the
contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or
vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the contractor may request
the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

7. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement

Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or
research work shall provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in
any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made
by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants,
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,"” and any implementing regulations issued by
the awarding agency.

8. Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in
the state energy conservation plan issued I compliance with the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163,889 Stat.871)

CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $2,000

1. Copeland "Anti-Kickback™ Act (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 276¢)

All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2000 for construction or repair awarded by
recipients and subrecipients shall include a provision for compliance with the Copeland
"Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874), as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or
Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States").

The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing,
by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public
work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The
recipient shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

2. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7)

When required by Federal program legislation, all construction contracts awarded by the
recipients and subrecipients of more than $2000 shall include a provision for compliance
with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) and as supplemented by Department
of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to
Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction™).

Under this Act, contractors shall be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a
rate not less than the minimum wages specified in a wage determination made by the
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Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages not less than
once a week. The recipient shall place a copy of the current prevailing wage
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation and the award of a
contract shall be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The
recipient shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

In addition to other provisions, all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 must
include the Federal Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) as attached (form HUD-
4010). (Housing rehabilitation contracts of less than 8 units are excluded from this
requirement.)

3. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333)

Where applicable, all contracts awarded by recipients in excess of $2000 for
construction contracts and in excess of $2500 for other contracts that involve the
employment of mechanics or laborers shall include a provision for compliance with
Sections 102 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.
327-333), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5).

Under Section 102 of the Act, each contractor shall be required to compute the wages of
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in
excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is
compensated at a rate of not less than 1 % times the basic rate of pay for all hours
worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.

Section 107 of the Act is applicable to construction work and provides that no laborer or
mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which
are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the
purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $100,000

In addition to the preceding provisions, contracts in excess of $100,000 shall require compliance
with the following laws and regulations:

Section 306 of the Clean Air Acts (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)).
Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368).
Executive Order 11738.

EPA Regulations - 40 CFR, Part 15.

1. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), as amended

The following clause is required in all third party contracts involving projects subject to the Clean
Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et
seg.), and should also be mentioned in the bid document.

“During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows:



(1) The CONTRACTOR will certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any
nonexempt contract or subcontract is not listed on the List of Violating Facilities issued
by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20.

(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the
Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 1857c¢-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring,
entry, reports, and information, as well as all other requirements specified in said Section
114 and Section 308, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder.

(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt
notice will be given of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal
Activities, Environmental Protection Agency, indicating that a facility utilized or to be
utilized for the contract is under consideration to be listed on the Environmental
Protection Agency List of Violating Facilities.

(4) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will include or cause to be included the criteria and
requirements in Paragraph (1) through (4) of this section in every nonexempt subcontract
and require every subcontractor to take such action as the Government may direct as a
means of enforcing such provisions.”

PROJECTS OVER $200,000

1. Section 3

Section 3 applies to projects involving housing construction, housing rehabilitation or
other public construction with a CDBG award of greater than $200,000, and the contracts
and subcontracts are greater than $100,000.

All Section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the
Section 3 clause):

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The
purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by
HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent
feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients
of HUD assistance for housing.

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which
implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract
certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from
complying with the part 135 regulations.

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a
notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments
under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work
site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the
notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and
job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications
for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions;
and the anticipated date the work shall begin.



D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding
that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will
not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135.

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions,
that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with
persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment
opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24
CFR part 135.

F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions,
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted
contracts.

G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing
assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25
U.S.C. 450¢) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires
that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment
shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be
given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract
that are subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to
the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).”



Federal Labor Standards Provisions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Labor Relations

Applicability

The Project or Program to which the construction work covered
by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of
America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions
are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable
to such Federal assistance.

A. 1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics em-
ployed or working upon the site of the work will be paid uncondi-
tionally and not less often than once a week, and without subse-
quent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll
deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secre-
tary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full
amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equiva-
lents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less
than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary
of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, re-
gardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to
exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.
Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide
fringe benefits under Section [(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on
behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to
such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR
5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred
for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly)
under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly
period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during
such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage
rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classi-
fication of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except
as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics per-
forming work in more than one classification may be compensated
at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually
worked therein: Provided, That the employer’s payroll records
accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which
work is performed. The wage determination (including any addi-
tional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR
5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted
at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of
the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be
easily seen by the workers.

(ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in
the wage determination and which is to be employed under the
contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage deter-
mination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage
rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria
have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is
not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction
industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe ben-
efits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained
in the wage determination.

(b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be em-
ployed in the classification (if known), or their representatives,
and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage
rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where

appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or
its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division,
Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of La-
bor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional
classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD
or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day
period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office
of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-
0140.)

(c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be
employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD
or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and
wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits,
where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions,
including the views of all interested parties and the recommenda-
tion of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determina-
tion. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will is-
sue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD
or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day
period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office
of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-
0140.)

(d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate)
determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this para-
graph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classifi-
cation under this contract from the first day on which work is per-
formed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract
for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which
is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay
the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay an-
other bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or
other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs rea-
sonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a
plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found,
upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable stan-
dards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of
Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate ac-
count assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or pro-
gram. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under
OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or
upon written request of an authorized representative of the De-
partment of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the con-
tractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the
same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract
subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is
held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued pay-
ments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay la-
borers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and help-
ers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full
amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure
to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee
or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part
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of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may,
after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner,
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension
of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such
violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written
notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and
on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective
employees to whom they are due. The Comptroller General shall
make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act
contracts.

3. (i) Payrolls and basic records. Payrolls and basic records
relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the
course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereaf-
ter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work.
Such records shall contain the name, address, and social secu-
rity number of each such worker, his or her correct classification,
hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof
of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon
Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made
and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has
found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or
mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated
in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Sec-
tion 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall main-
tain records which show that the commitment to provide such
benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially re-
sponsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated
in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which
show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing
such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees
under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee
programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and
the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
(Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB
Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)

(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which
any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its
designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency
is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the
applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission
to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out ac-
curately and completely all of the information required to be main-
tained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i). This information may be submit-
ted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for
this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of
Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Gov-
ernment Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime con-
tractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by
all subcontractors. (Approved by the Office of Management and
Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)

(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “State-
ment of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or subcontractor or
his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the per-
sons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information
required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(i) and that
such information is correct and complete;

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, ap-
prentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll

period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without re-
bate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been
made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other
than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than
the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents
for the classification of work performed, as specified in the appli-
cable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification
set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall sat-
isfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compli-
ance” required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).

(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject
the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution
under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the
United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records re-
quired under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, copy-
ing, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its
designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such rep-
resentatives to interview employees during working hours on the
job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required
records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after
written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take
such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any
further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore,
failure to submit the required records upon request or to make
such records available may be grounds for debarment action pur-
suant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less
than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when
they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a
bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. De-
partment of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Of-
fice of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or
with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if
a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program,
who is not individually registered in the program, but who has
been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer
and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where
appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an
apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on
the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the
ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under
the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an ap-
prentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed
as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage
rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actu-
ally performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on
the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered
program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on
the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a
contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other
than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate)
specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program
shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less
than the rate specified in the registered program for the
apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the
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journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determi-
nation. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance
with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the appren-
ticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must
be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage deter-
mination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator de-
termines that a different practice prevails for the applicable ap-
prentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with
that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Train-
ing, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship
Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an ap-
prenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted
to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined
rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is ap-
proved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will
not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for
the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and
individually registered in a program which has received prior ap-
proval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department
of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of
trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than
permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Train-
ing Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than
the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee’s level
of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly
rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe
benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits
listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the
Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprentice-
ship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage
rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full
fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the pay-
roll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a
training plan approved by the Employment and Training Adminis-
tration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the
wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition,
any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work
actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the con-
tractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than
the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an
acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of appren-
tices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in
conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements
of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contrac-
tor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are
incorporated by reference in this contract

6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in
any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 1
through 11 of this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or
its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy
of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause re-
quiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower
tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for
the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor
with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.

7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract
clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the con-
tract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as
provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.
All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related
Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorpo-
rated by reference in this contract

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out
of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be sub-
ject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes
shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the De-
partment of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes
within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the
contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee,
the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their repre-
sentatives.

10. (i) Certification of Eligibility. By entering into this contract
the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any per-
son or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a person
or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of
Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be
awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant
to 24 CFR Part 24.

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of
Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be
awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant
to 24 CFR Part 24.

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the
U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. Criminal
Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., “Federal Housing Adminis-
tration transactions”, provides in part: “Whoever, for the purpose
of .. .influencing in any way the action of such Administration.....
makes, utters or publishes any statement knowing the same to be
false..... shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not
more than two years, or both.”

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.
No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor
standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be dis-
charged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Con-
tractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any
complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding
or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or
relating to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to
his employer.

B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provi-
sions of this paragraph B are applicable only where the amount of
the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in this paragraph, the
terms “laborers” and “mechanics” include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor con-
tracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve
the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any
such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is
employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such work-
week unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a
rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages.
In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subpara-
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graph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addi-
tion, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of
Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for
liguidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed
with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including
watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set
forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for
each calendar day on which such individual was required or permit-
ted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without
payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in
sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.
HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written
request of an authorized representative of the Department of La-
bor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable
on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor
under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the
same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract
subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be
determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such con-
tractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages
as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this
paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert
in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1)
through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the sub-
contractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.
The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth
in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are ap-
plicable only where the amount of the prime contract exceeds
$100,000.

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surround-
ings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazard-
ous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under
construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Sec-
retary of Labor by regulation.

(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the
Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to
comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Con-
tract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 USC 3701 et seq.

(3) The Contractor shall include the provisions of this para-
graph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be
binding on each subcontractor. The Contractor shall take such
action with respect to any subcontract as the Secretary of
Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor
shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.
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U.S. Department of Labor PAYROLL *

Wagaand Hour Division (For Contractor's Optional Use; See Instructions at www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm) U Wase il Bloiie Tokttiion

Persons are not required to respond to the collection of information unless It displays a eurrently valid OMB control number. Rev. Dec. 2008
NAME OF CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR ADDRESS
O RecTer ] OMB No.: 1215-0149
Expires: 12/31/2011
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While completion of Form WH-347 is optional, it is mandatory for covered contractors and subcontractors performing work on Federally financed or assisted construction contracts to respond to the information collection contained in 29 C.F.R. §§ 3.3, 5.5(a). The Copeland Act
(40 U.S.C. § 3145) contractors and subcontractors performing work on Federally financed or assisted construction contracts to "furnish weekly a statement with respect to the wages paid each employee during the preceding week.” U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) regulations at

29 C.F.R. § 5.5(a)(3)(il) require contractors to submit weekly a copy of all payrolls to the Federal agency contracting for or financing the construction project, accompanied by a signed "Statement of Compliance” indicating that the payrolls are correct and complete and that each laborer
or mechanic has been paid not less than the proper Davis-Bacon prevailing wage rate for the work performed. DOL and federal contracting agencies receiving this information review the information to determine that employees have received legally required wages and fringe benefits.

Public Burden Statement

We estimate that is will take an average of 55 minutes to complete this collection, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. If you have
any comments regarding these estimates or any other aspect of this collection, including suggestions for reducing this burden, send them to the Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor, Room 53502, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C, 20210
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Date

{Name of Signatory Party) (Titte)
do hereby state:

{1) That | pay or supervise the payment of the persons employed by

on the

(Contractor or Subcontractor)

; that during the payrolt pefiod commencing on the

{Bullding or Work)
day of \ , and ending the day of .

all persons employed on said project have been pald the full weekly wages earned, that no rebates have
been or will be made either directly or indirectly to or cn behalf of said

from the full

{Cantractor or Subcontractor)

weekly wages earned by any person and that no deduclions have been made either directly or indirectly
from the full wages earned by any person, other than permissible deductions as defined in Reguiations, Part

3 {28 C.F.R. Subtitle A), issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act, as amended {48 Stat. 948,

63 Start. 108, 72 Stat. 967; 76 Stat. 357; 40 U.S.C. § 3145}, and described below:

(2) That any payrolls otherwise under this contract required to bs submitted for the above pericd are
correct and complete; that the wage rates for laborers or mechanics contained therein are not less than the
applicable wage rates coniained in any wage determination incorporated into the contract; that the
classifications set forth thereln for each laborer or mechanic conform with the work he performed.

(3) That any apprentices employed in the above period are duly registered in a bona fide
apprenticeship program registered with a State apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau of
Apprenticeship and Training, United States Department of Labor, or if ne such recognized agency exists in a
State, are registered with the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, United States Department of Labor.

{4) That:
(2) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID TO APPROVED PLANS, FUNDS, OR PROGRAMS

O

— in addition to the basic hourly wage rates paid to each laborer or mechanic listed in
the above referenced payroll, payments of fringe benefits as listed in the contract
have been or will be made to appropriate programs for the benefit of such
employees, except as noted in section 4(c) below.

(b) WHERE FRINGE BENEFITS ARE PAID IN CASH

B — FEach laborer or mechanic listed in the above referenced payrell has been paid,
as indicated on the payroll, an amount not less than the sum of the applicable
basic hourly wage rate plus the amount of the required fringe benefits as listed
In the contract, except as noted in section 4(c} below.

(c) EXCEPTIONS

EXCEPTION (CRAFT) EXPLANATICN

REMARKS:

NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE

THE WILLFUL FALSIFICAT!ION OF ANY OF THE ABOVE STATEMENTS MAY SUBJECT THE CONTRACTOR OR
SUBCONTRACTOR TC CIViL OR CRIMINAL PROSECUTION. SEE SECTION 1001 OF TITLE 18 AND SECTION 231 OF TITLE
31 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE.
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